
                                                                                                                                                    
 
 

 

 
Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, September 23, 2015   
3:30 PM  
 
Web: www.SVMPO.org 
Email: SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov 
 
SVMPO Board of Directors 
(One or more members may participate via teleconference) 
 

Chair    Rick Mueller, Mayor, City of Sierra Vista 
Vice-Chair    Richard Searle, Supervisor, Cochise County 

Designated Alternate: Pat Call, Supervisor, Cochise 
County 

Member    Bob Blanchard, Mayor Pro Tem, City of Sierra Vista 
Member    Hank Huisking, Councilmember, City of Sierra Vista 
Member    Bill Harmon, Arizona Department of Transportation  
 
SVMPO Administrator   Dan Coxworth, AICP 
      

 
Please let the Chair know before the meeting begins if you wish to speak about an item that is ON the 
agenda. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  

 
2. ACCEPTANCE OF THE AGENDA 

 
3. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

Although not required, please let the Chair know before the meeting begins if you wish to speak during 
the Call to the Public about anything that is NOT on the agenda. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

SVMPO Regular Meeting of July 22, 2015 (Attached) 
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND UPDATES 

Announcements and/or updates may be provided by Board Members, SVMPO Administrator or other 
invitees. 

 

City of Sierra Vista 
City Hall 

City Manager’s Conference Room 
1011 North Coronado Drive 

Sierra Vista, AZ 85635 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

mailto:SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov


SVMPO Board of Directors –Regular Meeting 
September 23, 2015 
Page 2 of 3  

 

SIERRA VISTA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
401 Giulio Cesare Avenue, Sierra Vista, AZ 85635 

520-439-2178 
Web: www.SVMPO.org 

Email: SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov 
 

 

PRESENTATION / DISCUSSION / POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
6. DISCUSSION: ADOT District Boundary Changes 

Bill Harmon, ADOT District 8 Engineer 
 
SUMMARY: The recent reorganization of ADOT District boundaries will remove Sierra Vista from the 
Safford District and place it in the Tucson District.   

 
 
7. DISCUSSION / POSSIBLE ACTION: Amend SVMPO By-Laws (ATTACHED) 

Dan Coxworth 
 
SUMMARY: Minor changes to the SVMPO By-Laws amending pages 5 and 6 to generalize voting 
membership of the SVMPO Technical Advisory Committee (TAC).  Currently, TAC membership is 
determined by staff position title from member jurisdictions.  The amendment will allow for appointment 
to the TAC by respective City and County management.   
 
If the Board is satisfied with the proposed changes, the By-Laws will be placed in a 30-day public review 
and comment period. 
  

8. POSSIBLE ACTION: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between the SVMPO and City of 
Sierra Vista for Employment Services for the MPO Administrator (ATTACHED). 
Board of Directors 
 
SUMMARY:  Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Board and City concerning 
employment services for the MPO Administrator position.  
 
 

9.    POSSIBLE ACTION: Title VI and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan (Web Link) 
Dan Coxworth 
 
SUMMARY:  Required by the MPO for receiving federal aid, the Title VI and LEP Plan outlines how the 
MPO will comply with the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and make every effort to prevent 
discrimination through the impacts of its programs, policies on minority and low-income populations 
within the region.  The draft Title VI plan can be found here:  http://www.svmpo.org/wp-
content/uploads/2015/09/SVMPO-Title-VI-Plan-2016.pdf 

 
 

10.    POSSIBLE ACTION: Contract for Services with J2 Engineering and Environmental Design for 
the Fry Blvd. West End Corridor Study (Forthcoming) 
Dan Coxworth 
 
SUMMARY:  Review of the contract between the SVMPO and J2 Engineering and Environmental Design 
to conduct the Fry Blvd. West End Corridor Study.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION: Future Agenda Items  
 SVMPO Board 
  
 

mailto:SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov
http://www.svmpo.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/SVMPO-Title-VI-Plan-2016.pdf
http://www.svmpo.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/09/SVMPO-Title-VI-Plan-2016.pdf


SVMPO Board of Directors –Regular Meeting 
September 23, 2015 
Page 3 of 3  

 

SIERRA VISTA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
401 Giulio Cesare Avenue, Sierra Vista, AZ 85635 

520-439-2178 
Web: www.SVMPO.org 

Email: SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov 
 

 

12. UPCOMING SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
 SVMPO Board: November 18, 3:30 p.m., City Hall 
 SVMPO TAC: October 22, 1:30 p.m., Public Works 

 
 

13.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 For special needs and accommodations, please contact Daniel Coxworth prior to the meeting or activity.  

Mr. Coxworth can be reached at 520-439-2178 or email Dan.Coxworth@SierraVistaAZ.GOV or through 
Arizona Relay Service at 1-800-367-8939, or by dialing 7-1-1.  

mailto:SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov


                                                                                                                                                    
 
 

 

 
Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, July 22, 2015   
3:30 PM  
 
Web: www.SVMPO.org 
Email: SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov 
 
SVMPO Board of Directors 
(One or more members may participate via teleconference) 
 

Chair    Rick Mueller, Mayor, City of Sierra Vista 
Vice-Chair    Richard Searle, Supervisor, Cochise County 

Designated Alternate: Pat Call, Supervisor, Cochise 
County 

Member    Hank Huisking, Councilmember, City of Sierra Vista 
Member    Bill Harmon, Arizona Department of Transportation  

 
Staff Present 

 
SVMPO Administrator   Dan Coxworth, AICP 
SVMPO TAC Vice Chair  Sharon Flissar, City Engineer, City of Sierra Vista 
SVMPO TAC Member  Scott Dooley, Director of Public Works, City of Sierra Vista 

 
Others Present 

 
Patricia Molinari, Citizen 
Bruce Piepho, Citizen 
Tricia Gerrodette, Citizen 
Drew Spear, Dibble Engineering 
Kent Dibble, Dibble Engineering 
Kevin Perko, Dibble Engineering 
Tom Crosby, Citizen 
 

   
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  

 
Chair Mueller called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 
 
SVMPO Administrator Coxworth conducted the roll call. Member Bob Blanchard, Councilmember was 
absent.  Chair Mueller confirmed there was a quorum. 
 

City of Sierra Vista 
City Hall 

City Manager’s Conference Room 
1011 North Coronado Drive 

Sierra Vista, AZ 85635 

 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  

mailto:SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov


SVMPO Board of Directors –Regular Meeting 
July 22, 2015 
Page 2 of 4  

 

SIERRA VISTA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
401 Giulio Cesare Avenue, Sierra Vista, AZ 85635 

520-439-2178 
Web: www.SVMPO.org 

Email: SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov 
 

 

2. ACCEPTANCE OF THE AGENDA 
 

Chair Mueller asked for a motion to accept the Agenda for the July 22, 2015 Regular Meeting of 
the SVMPO, as written.  Vice Chair Richard Searle so moved and Member Huisking seconded. The 
motion passed unanimously, 4/0. 

 
3. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 

 
Patricia Molinari, Citizen, read and explained her concerns with the BST DCR (see attachments). 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
 

Vice Chair, Searle moved to accept the May 20, 2015 minutes, with one amendment.  Chair Mueller 
seconded the motion 
 
The amendment included correcting an acronym from NEAPA to NEPA. 
 

5. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND UPDATES 
 
Chair Mueller stated that at the next Board meeting will be an agreement between the City and SVMPO 

for services of employing the SVMPO Administer.  Future evaluations of the MPO Administrator 
will be conducted by the Board.  

 
PRESENTATION / DISCUSSION / POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
6. PRESENTATION / DISCUSSION: BUFFALO SOLDIER TRAIL (BST) DESIGN CONEPT 

REPORT (DCR) 
Dan Coxworth / Dibble Engineering 
 
SUMMARY: Dibble Engineering will give a presentation to the Board concerning the Final Draft of the 
BST DCR.  A copy of the Draft DCR can be found on the SVMPO web site at: 
http://www.svmpo.org/current-projects/buffalo-soldier-trail-design-concept-report/ 
 
Drew Spear, Engineer, Dibble Engineer gave a presentation (attached) of the Buffalo Soldier Trail, 
Design Concept Report.   
 
  

7. POSSIBLE ACTION: BUFFALO SOLDIER TRAIL DESIGN (BST) DESIGN CONCEPT 
REPORT (DCR) 
Board 
 
SUMMARY: Possible action by the Board to accept the BST DCR.     
 
Chair Mueller asked for public comment.  Ms. Molinari asked Dibble Engineering why her wells were 
not identified.  Mr. Spear stated that the well site locations were from registered wells with the State.   
Ms. Molinari made a statement questioning the public input process.  Expressing concerns about traffic 
and the county’s ability to deal with it and the MPO’s public notification of process of the public 
meetings.   

mailto:SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov
http://www.svmpo.org/current-projects/buffalo-soldier-trail-design-concept-report/


SVMPO Board of Directors –Regular Meeting 
July 22, 2015 
Page 3 of 4  

 

SIERRA VISTA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
401 Giulio Cesare Avenue, Sierra Vista, AZ 85635 

520-439-2178 
Web: www.SVMPO.org 

Email: SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov 
 

 

Further concerns were expressed by Ms. Molinari about the proposed route and process of developing 
the DCR.  Ms. Molinari expressed concerns that the public was not adequately informed. 
 
Chair Mueller asked Mr. Spear about the locations of the wells.  Mr. Spear stated they pulled registered 
wells from ADWR.  Ms. Molinari stated that Mr. Coxworth has been fully aware of all her concerns and 
that they are being ignored.  Mr. Spear stated that Dibblle only has general knowledge of the well 
locations but without formal permission to access the property it’s not possible to obtain a GPS location 
of the wells. 
 
Vice Chair Searle asked Mr. Coxworth what are the implications of accepting the report.  Mr. Coxworth 
stated that by accepting the report it will allow the City and County to move on to the next step.   
 
Vice Chair Searle asked Mr. Coxworth what are the implications of not accepting the report.  Mr. 
Coxworth stated that he was not entirely sure, but that the Dibble Engineering report will be made 
available to the City, County, and MPO for use in the future if needed.   
 
Tricia Gerrodette stated that she was confused by the survey at the January meeting and that she would 
support a no-build option, but that a no-build option was not provided.   Ms. Gerrodette also expressed 
concerns about the public input process.  Ms. Gerrodette discussed and expressed her confusion about 
the NEPA process. She contacted professionals from FHWA about the NEPA process.  Ms. Gerrodette 
explained that she believes the process should start over, starting with NEPA.   
 
Bruce Piepho asked if Adobe Home Road was considered.  Mr. Spear stated that Adobe Home was 
considered, but that BLM land and its proximity to a cultural site is problematic. Mr. Piepho expressed 
concerns about the study and the Riverstone project.  Chair Mueller explained the Riverstone project is a 
separate issue for the county.  Mr. Piepho recommended that the extension connect to Colonia de Salud. 
Mr. Piepho expressed concerns about the cost of building a bridge over Garden Creek.  Mr. Piepho 
offered other solutions to relieve traffic on the State Highways.  
 
Vice Chair Searle explained that the study has done a lot of good because that it identified the need for a 
connection, provided an opportunity for public scrutiny bringing to the surface all the issues of extending 
BST.  Vice Chair stated that he cannot support the recommendation of the Study.  Vice Chair Searle 
further stated that he felt eminent domain would be required and that he does not support eminent 
domain.  Vice Chair Searle stated that Riverstone will have a conservation easement and that there will 
not be a lot of development on this land.   
 
Vice Chair Searle understands the need to get the traffic off of Moson, but that the route that is being 
recommended would require eminent domain.  The county will need to look at other potential routes to 
make the east-west connection.  
 
Member Harmon stated that a DCR is a pre-scoping document and a process of discovery.  Mr. Harmon 
stated that he sees the need to develop a more robust transportation network in the region.  If the county 
has a strong objection to eminent domain, then that is considered a fatal flaw.  Mr. Harmon felt that there 
is always more opportunity to further study a potential east-west connection.   
 
Vice Chair Searle explained that the discussion to connect BST to Moson Road will not go away, but 
that the county will continue to look for routes.   
 
Mr. Harmon stated that if the county feels strongly that eminent domain is not an option, then cannot 
support a motion to accept the DCR.   

mailto:SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov


SVMPO Board of Directors –Regular Meeting 
July 22, 2015 
Page 4 of 4  

 

SIERRA VISTA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
401 Giulio Cesare Avenue, Sierra Vista, AZ 85635 

520-439-2178 
Web: www.SVMPO.org 

Email: SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov 
 

 

 
Member Huisking stated she understands the need and the difficulty of the process of identifying the 
location of extending BST.  It was necessary to go through the process and that the City and county are 
still at the discovery phase of a potential east-west connection and that it should continue. 
 
Chair Mueller stated he understands the need for improved traffic circulation in the region.  Although, 
there is a need for another north-south connection there will continue to be a need for an east-west 
connection to Moson.  Chair Mueller respects the county’s aversion to use eminent domain.  Dibble did 
what was asked and that the MPO has the report to build on.  Chair Mueller expressed his concerns that 
the region may already be behind in the opportunities to improve regional circulation. 
 
Chair Mueller asked for a motion to accept the BST DCR.  Vice Chair Searle made a motion to 
accept the BST DCR.  Member Huisking seconded the motion. The motion failed unanimously, 4/0. 
 
 

8. DISCUSSION: FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
  

 Memorandum of Understanding between the SVMPO and City of Sierra Vista concerning the terms of 
employment of the MPO Administrator. 

  
 
9. UPCOMING SCHEDULED MEETINGS 
 CANCELLED:  SVMPO Board: August 19, 3:30 p.m., City Hall 
 SVMPO TAC: August 27, 1:30 p.m., Public Works 

 
 

10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Chair Mueller adjourned the meeting at 5:49 

 
 
 Minutes Prepared by: 
 
 Dan Coxworth, SVMPO Administrator 
  

mailto:SVMPO@SierraVistaAZ.gov


Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization
Location / Design Concept Report

Buffalo Soldier Trail Extension to Moson Road

SVMPO Board Meeting
July 22, 2015



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d

• Project Purpose and Need

• Design Goals

• Study Objectives

• Alternatives Analysis

• Evaluation Results

• Concept Design Layout

• Next Steps

Presentation Agenda



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d

• Reduce regional congestion 

• Plan for future local growth and development

• Develop bypass route for State Routes 90 and 
92 and reduce need to widen those roads

• Ensure future transportation corridor is 
compatible with existing and future land uses 
and environmental conditions

• Improve transportation system operations by 
distributing traffic onto parallel east-west 
roadway

Project Purpose and Need



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d

• Inform and seek public input into the project 
alternatives

• Maximize benefit to traveling public by 
reducing travel time and delays

• Enhance safety
• Minimize adverse impacts to the environment
• Enhance traffic operations
• To create multi-modal corridor
• Minimize adverse impacts to residents and 

businesses

Design Goals



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d

• Identify new right-of-way requirements

• Develop consensus-driven improvement 
alternatives

• Determine the preferred roadway alignment 
from a regional framework perspective

• Develop an access management plan to 
maintain the operation efficiency of the 
roadway corridor

• Develop a realistic phased implementation 
plan

Study Objectives



Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization
Location / Design Concept Report

Buffalo Soldier Trail Extension to Moson Road

Study 
Area



Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization
Location / Design Concept Report

Buffalo Soldier Trail Extension to Moson Road

STUDY SCHEDULE

Project Kick-off Nov 2014

TAC Meeting #1 Nov 12, 2014

Existing and Proposed Features Analysis Nov 2014- Jan 2015

Alternatives Development & Evaluation Phase Dec 2014-Feb 2015

Public Meeting #1 (Scoping) Jan 20, 2015

Final Alternatives Analysis Feb 22, 2015

Present to BOS/TAC Mar 6, 2015

Public Meeting #2 Apr 14, 2015

Draft Design Concept Report June 9, 2015

Implementation Plan June 9, 2015

TAC Review and Comment July 8, 2015

Final DCR Aug 2015



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d
Original Alternative Corridors



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d
Alternatives Evaluated



Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization
Location / Design Concept Report

Buffalo Soldier Trail Extension to Moson Road

• Public support
• Moson Road impacts
• Access impacts
• Future development 

compatibility
• Traffic network 

continuity
• Drainage/floodplain 

impacts

• Building/Property 
impacts

• Environmental 
impacts

• Utility/Well impacts
• Costs
• Noise impacts
• Ranching impacts

12 Evaluation Criteria



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d
Public Support Summary

Criteria

Posit
ive 

Nega
tiv

e

Net 
Ratin

g (1
-10)

Alternative
No Build 8 56 -48 0
A- Garza Road 10 5 5 3
B- Garden Creek 18 8 10 6
C- Lower Ranch 8 6 2 2
D- Durango 19 4 15 8
E- Connor 6 6 0 1
F- Valley 3 16 -13 0



Future Traffic w/out Project

2040 Traffic Volumes w/o Project



Future Traffic Comparison

2040 Traffic Volumes w/o Project 2040 Traffic w/ Project



Criteria

Public 
Su

pport

Moso
n Rd Im

pacts

Acce
ss 

Im
pacts

Fu
ture Development 

Compatabilit
y

Traffic
 N

etw
ork Contin

uity

Flo
odplain Im

pacts

Build
ing/P

ro
perty

 Im
pacts

Envir
onmental Im

pacts

Utili
ty/

Well I
mpacts

Costs
Noise

Ran
ch

ing

Total

Importance 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 120

Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Total

Alternative
No Build 0 5 6 1 0 10 10 10 10 10 5 10 77
A- Garza Road 3 2 8 7 6 9 4 7 6 7 5 8 72
B- Garden Creek 6 1 5 9 7 8 5 7 7 7 6 8 76
C- Lower Ranch 2 7 8 9 8 9 8 6 6 6 7 8 84
D- Durango 8 7 10 9 9 6 7 6 7 6 8 6 89
E- Connor 1 7 10 9 10 7 8 6 4 5 5 7 79
F- Valley 0 7 4 9 10 0 0 4 3 5 3 8 53

Final Scoring



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d

Alternative For Against

No Build 5 6

A – Garza Road 0 2

B – Garden Creek Trail 2 1

C – Lower Ranch Road 1 0

D – Durango Road 2 0

E – Connor Road 0 0

F – Valley Drive 0 0

Public Meeting No. 2 – April 14, 2015

Written Comments (22 received)



Candidate Preferred Alternative



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d
Alternative D
• Most public support
• Minimal improvements required on Moson Road
• Minimal disruption and reconstruction to mitigate access 

impacts to land parcels
• Fits the intent of the Tribute Specific Plan
• Creates one of the shortest paths for most drivers to take from 

the parcels south of BST and east of Moson Road
• Has minimal utility and well impacts compared to the other 

build alternatives
• Has the least noise impact to existing homes
• Alignment has the flexibility to avoid or minimize impacts to the 

floodplains, properties, environment, and ranching operations.
• Improves safety by creating a second all-weather crossing of 

Garden Canyon Wash which can be used when Moson Road is 
inundated with flood waters

Candidate “Preferred Alterative”



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d

• Ultimate Cost $13.4 million *
• Interim Cost $7.3 million

*Comments from Draft DCR have not been addressed in the 
cost estimate at this time 

Costs





BST – Section 18W



BST – Section 18 E



BST – Section 17W



BST – Section 17E



BST – Section 16W



BST – Section 16E



BST – Section 22W



BST – Section 22E



BST – Section 23W



Si
er

ra
 V

is
ta

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n

Lo
ca

tio
n/

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

ce
pt

 R
ep

or
t

B
uf

fa
lo

 S
ol

di
er

 T
ra

il 
Ex

te
ns

io
n 

to
 M

os
on

 R
oa

d

• Consensus on Preferred Alternative

• Develop conceptual design for Preferred 
Alternative

• Develop Implementation Plan
• Finalize DCR

Next Steps

• Environmental Assessment w/ Public 
Meeting(s)

• Design of interim roadway w/ Public 
Meeting(s)

• Construction of interim roadway

De
sig

n 
Co

nc
ep

t S
tu

dy
Fu

tu
re

 T
as

ks
 

















































 

 
SVMPO Bylaws: December 18, 2013 (Amended TBD, 2015)      Page | 1 
  

Sierra Vista Metropolitan 
Planning Organization 

                                    December 18, 2013 
 

SECTION I. OBJECTIVE 
 

The objective of the Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization (SVMPO) is to carry 

out planning, coordination, and integration of activities necessary to maintain a comprehensive, 

cooperative, and continuing multi-agency transportation planning program; and further, as 

specified by the Board of Directors of SVMPO, carry out other related specific tasks including 

implementation thereof. The SVMPO will exercise leadership and initiative in transportation 

planning and assisting development of the greater Sierra Vista community. 
 
 
SECTION II: AREA 
 

The area that permitted SVMPO to be designated as a Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(MPO) under federal and state law is the Sierra Vista Urbanized Area, shown in Figure 1.  The 

Planning Area Boundary of the SVMPO includes the City of Sierra Vista incorporated limits 

including Fort Huachuca, and unincorporated areas of Cochise County, as depicted in Figure 2. 
 
 
SECTION III: ORGANIZATION 
 

Jurisdictions that make up the SVMPO include the City of Sierra Vista, Cochise County, 

and the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT).  Elected officials (except for ADOT's 

representative, who is appointed by the Governor of the State of Arizona) from each of those 

agencies make up a Board of Directors; an MPO Administrator; and technical staff make up a 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). In addition, there may be other special committees such 

as technical subcommittees and/or citizen tasks forces.  Each group is defined below: 
 

A. Board of Directors.  The SVMPO Board of Directors consists of elected officials from 

the City of Sierra Vista, Cochise County, and one member from the Arizona Department 

of Transportation’s State Transportation Board who is appointed to the State 

Transportation Board by the Governor, or his/her designee, who must be an employee of 

BY-LAWS 



 

 
SVMPO Bylaws: December 18, 2013 (Amended TBD, 2015)      Page | 2 
  

the Arizona Department of Transportation.   It is the function of the Board of Directors to 

act as a policy making body, coordinating and directing transportation planning, 

implementation thereof and related activities within the overall regional comprehensive 

planning process. 
 

1. Membership. 
 

(a) To be an eligible member of the Board of Directors, that person must be a duly 

elected member of a governing body of a unit of local government located in the 

SVMPO planning area, excepting the member of the Arizona State Transportation 

Board.  Each unit of local government and the State Transportation Board shall 

designate the person or persons among its duly elected governing body or, appointed 

to the State Transportation Board by the Governor that shall serve as primary member 

of the SVMPO Board of Directors.  At its discretion, each government entity may 

select alternates who are duly elected members of the governing body or a duly 

qualified employee designated by the State Transportation Board’s SVMPO 

representative, when the primary member(s) is not available.  The alternate(s) will 

have the same voting power and duties in the absence of the primary member(s).     
 

(b) Designation of Primary and Alternate members shall be in accordance with statute, 

ordinance or regulation governing each agency, and written verification shall be 

provided in a timely manner at least annually to the SVMPO Administrator. 
 

(c) The number of eligible members on the Executive Board shall be as follows: 
 

Jurisdiction 

Number 
of 

Members 
City of Sierra Vista 3 

Cochise County 1 

State Transportation Board 1 

Total 5 
  
 
(d) Any member, who for any reason shall no longer be in the service of the 

governmental unit jurisdiction, shall have his/her position vacated automatically and 



 

 
SVMPO Bylaws: December 18, 2013 (Amended TBD, 2015)      Page | 3 
  

another member shall be appointed by the appropriate governmental unit. 
 

(e)  Representatives of the following units of government are voting members of the 

SVMPO: City of Sierra Vista, Cochise County, and the Arizona State Transportation 

Board.   

 
2. Voting. 

 
(a) Each member of the Board of Directors is entitled to one (1) vote.  Upon the absence 

of a Primary member at any particular meeting, his/her vote may be cast by an 

alternate member from the same jurisdiction. 
 

(b) Any declaration of abstention or conflict of interest must be stated prior to discussion 

of that particular agenda item.   

 
3. Officers. 

 
(a) The members of the SVMPO shall elect the following officers: Chair and Vice Chair.  

Election of officers will occur at the first meeting of the calendar year.   In the 

absence of the Chair, or upon his/her inability to act or serve, the Vice Chair shall 

have the powers of the Chair.  The Chair and Vice Chair will serve without 

compensation, and shall serve for a period of one year.  
 
(b) The Chair shall be able to vote on all matters before the SVMPO.  He/she shall sign 

on behalf of the SVMPO all documents requiring signatures and shall perform all 

other duties required of the Chair.  The Chair develops the Agenda for all board 

meetings, subject to approval by the Board.  The SVMPO Board of Directors may 

delegate to the MPO Administrator such signatures it deems appropriate and/or 

necessary. 
 

(c) The SVMPO Chair shall have the custody and control of the funds, and shall report 

the state of the finances of the SVMPO at the close out of the fiscal year.  He/she 

shall have the responsibility for keeping the minutes and such books, resolutions, or 

other services that may be required by the SVMPO.  The SVMPO Board of Directors 



 

 
SVMPO Bylaws: December 18, 2013 (Amended TBD, 2015)      Page | 4 
  

may delegate to an employee, or employees, of the SVMPO any or all of the duties 

and powers described in this section (3)(c). 
 

(d) If required by the SVMPO Board, any employee, or retained consultant so delegated 

any or all of his/her functions, shall give the SVMPO a bond in such, and with such 

surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the SVMPO, for the faithful performance 

of the duties of this office. 
 

4. Responsibilities. 
 

(a) The SVMPO Board of Directors is responsible for all actions, agreements and 

functions to be carried out by the Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization. 
 
(b) The SVMPO is responsible for development of the following essential products: 

 
1. Long Range Regional Transportation Plan; 

2. Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); 

3. Public Participation Plan; and 

4. Unified Planning Work Program and Budget;  
 

(c) Other products deemed essential may be authorized by the Board of Directors, and 

specified in the Unified Planning Work Program. 
 
5. Meetings. 

 
(a) The Board of Directors of the SVMPO shall follow the Open Meeting Laws of 

Arizona. 
 
(b) The guideline for the parliamentary procedures used at meetings shall be Robert 

Rules of Order, except as otherwise modified herein or unless the Rules are 

suspended by a majority vote of all voting members. 
 

(c) A quorum shall be required for the conduct of any business.  Majority (i.e., three) 

members of the SVMPO Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business. 
 



 

 
SVMPO Bylaws: December 18, 2013 (Amended TBD, 2015)      Page | 5 
  

(d) The SVMPO Board of Directors shall meet regularly, at least once a quarter.  

Additional meetings may be called by the Chair as required.  The time, date, and 

location of meetings will be posted at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance.  The 

notices of the meetings shall conform to the open meeting laws of Arizona.  Members 

will be notified of all meetings. 

 
(e) Remote participation by members or alternates for all Board meetings is allowed by 

telephone or video conference provided that the participant and all in attendance can 

hear each other.  Remote SVMPO Board member participant(s) are considered 

present for purposes of a quorum. 

 
 

B. Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). The SVMPO’s Technical Advisory Committee 

(TAC) is composed of technical and/or managerial staff representatives from each of the 

participating agencies (including ADOT). In addition, there may be one or more ex-

officio, non-voting representatives from Fort Huachuca.  Each ex-officio, non-voting 

member, must be approved by his/her respective agency.  The MPO Administrator is a 

non-voting member of the TAC and will provide the required administrative support. 
 

The TAC has authority and primary responsibility to conduct technical reviews and analyses 

regarding all work activities of the Unified Planning Work Program, and any related issues as 

specified by the SVMPO’s Board of Directors, and to so advise the Board of Directors on 

appropriate actions that may be taken.  The TAC works closely with SVMPO staff, providing 

guidance and direction for development of the annual Unified Planning Work Program and 

Budget and work activities defined therein. 
 
 

1. Membership. 
 

(a) Voting membership on the SVMPO Technical Advisory Committee shall be as follows: 
 
City of Sierra Vista - Three (3)  
City staff positions appointed by the City Manager.   
Director of Public Works 
Director of Community Development 



 

 
SVMPO Bylaws: December 18, 2013 (Amended TBD, 2015)      Page | 6 
  

City Engineer 
 

Cochise County - One (1) position  
County staff position appointed by the County Administrator.   
Director of Public Works 

 
Arizona Department of Transportation - One (1) position: 

    Planning Program Manager, ADOT for Systems Planning and Programming 
 
The persons appointed to the TAC in each of the above named positions may, by a 

written statement to the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Technical Advisory 

Committee, designate a regular alternate. Non-regular alternates (i.e., for a particular meeting) 

must be declared when the meeting is called to order.   
 

(b) In addition to the voting members listed above, one or more ex-officio non-voting 

representatives from Fort Huachuca may participate on issues of concern and/or 

subjects of particular technical expertise. 
 

2. Voting 
 

Each member of the Board of Directors Technical Advisory Committee is entitled to one 

(1) vote.  Upon the absence of a Primary member at any particular meeting, his/her vote 

may be cast by an alternate member from the same jurisdiction. 
 

Elected officers of the TAC shall be elected on an annual basis at the first meeting of the 

calendar year.  
 

3. Responsibilities. 
 

The SVMPO Technical Advisory Committee shall be responsible for reviewing, 

studying, analyzing, and as appropriate, making recommendations to the SVMPO Board 

of Directors on issues germane to the Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization. 
 

4. Meetings. 
 

(a) The guideline for parliamentary procedures at meetings shall be Roberts Rules of 

Order, except as otherwise modified herein or unless the Rules are suspended by a 

majority vote of all voting members. 
 



 

 
SVMPO Bylaws: December 18, 2013 (Amended TBD, 2015)      Page | 7 
  

(b) A quorum shall be required for the conduct of any business.  Majority (i.e., three) 

TAC members of the SVMPO shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of 

business. 
 

(c) The SVMPO TAC shall meet regularly at least once a quarter, unless determined 

otherwise by the Chair of the TAC or by a majority vote of the TAC.  Members will 

be notified of all meetings. 

 
(d) Remote participation by TAC members or alternates for all TAC meetings is allowed 

by telephone or video conference provided that the participant and all in attendance 

can hear each other.  Remote TAC member participant(s) are considered present for 

purposes of a quorum. 

 

 
IV. FINANCES 
 
A. Fiscal Year. The Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization’s fiscal year shall 

commence on July 1 of each year. 
 
B. Funding. The SVMPO shall have the power to receive funds from any public or private 

source including, but not limited to, the federal, state and local governments; voluntary 

associations; non-profit corporations, firms, partnerships, or person or any combination 

thereof; bequests, donations, devices, grants, and gifts of all kinds of property. 
 
C. Audit. The Chair shall call for an annual audit of the financial affairs of the SVMPO to be 

made by the municipal entity performing financial services.   The audit report shall be made 

available to all SVMPO members. 
 
 
V. SPECIAL COMMITTEES 
 

A.   Formation. 
 

1. Special SVMPO committees may be created by the SVMPO Board of Directors as 

deemed necessary.  A special committee may be either an ad hoc committee for a 



 

 
SVMPO Bylaws: December 18, 2013 (Amended TBD, 2015)      Page | 8 
  

specific work task, or a standing committee for one or more work tasks.  Any such 

special committee will be responsible to the SVMPO Board of Directors. 
 

2. At the direction of the Chair of the Board of Directors and the Technical Advisory 

Committee, respectively, subcommittees may be formed to investigate some 

particular work task/issue germane to the Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning 

Organization. 
 

B. Powers and Duties. The SVMPO Board of Directors shall define the duties, and 

authorize the power of all special committees.  Special committees shall follow 

parliamentary procedures as defined in these Bylaws for the Board of Directors and 

Technical Advisory Committee.  Special committees, unless membership consists 

exclusively of employees of the member jurisdictions, shall observe the Open Meeting 

Laws of Arizona. 
 

C. Membership. Membership on a special committee shall be determined by the SVMPO 

Board of Directors and/or the Technical Advisory Committee.  The SVMPO Board of 

Directors and/or the Technical Advisory Committee may appoint, at its discretion, any 

individual it deems qualified to serve on a special committee. 
 
 
VI. AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 
 

These Bylaws can be amended by a majority vote of the Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning 

Organization’s Board of Directors at any scheduled meeting. 
 
 
VII. SVMPO STAFF 
 

The SVMPO staff consists of an MPO Administrator and supporting staff personnel as 

designated by the Board. 
 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

City of Sierra Vista, Arizona 
and 

Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization 
 

By this Memorandum of Understanding, entered into this _______ day of ______________ 2015, the 
City of Sierra Vista (“City”) and Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization (“SVMPO”) agree to have 
the City of Sierra Vista provide the SVMPO Administrator. 

The parties of this memorandum agree as follows: 

1. The City of Sierra Vista shall endeavor to provide a MPO Administrator to provide MPO 
administration to the SVMPO effective _________, 2015. 

2. The parties to this agreement shall on an as-needed basis meet to evaluate the services being 
provided and discuss items of mutual concern.  

3. This agreement shall automatically renew each July 1 unless the agreement is terminated. 
a. This agreement may be terminated, with or without cause, by either Party, upon written 

notification not less than 60 days prior to June 30. 
4. During the term of this agreement, the City of Sierra Vista shall: 

a. Employ a full-time MPO Administrator to provide MPO Administration services to the 
SVMPO. Salary and salary adjustments will be determined by the City Manager in 
coordination with the SVMPO Board of Directors. 

b. The SVMPO Board of Directors shall participate in the interview, selection, and 
subsequent evaluation of the employee. 

c. Bill SVMPO quarterly for 90% of the MPO Administrator’s compensation that includes 
wages, benefits, and all costs of employment and a 5% Human Resources Administrative 
fee.  The remaining 10% of the MPO Administrator’s compensation, benefits, and costs 
of employment will be paid by the City. 

d. Provide office space for the MPO Administrator and be compensated for such space by 
the SVMPO. 

5. During the term of this agreement, the SVMPO shall: 
a. Guarantee to the City 90% funding that includes salary, benefits and all cost of 

employment, plus 5% administrative fee.  
b. Pay the City quarterly for the wages, benefits, 90% cost of employment and a 5% 

administrative fee.  
c. The SVMPO Board of Directors provide an annual review of the MPO Administrator. 

6. The parties shall negotiate all items not specifically covered under this Memorandum of 
Understanding.  

 

 



In Witness whereof the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum of Understanding to be executed 
by their authorized officers: 

CITY OF SIERRA VISTA 

 

By:__________________________________ Date:__________________________________ 

 

SIERRA VISTA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

 

By:__________________________________ Date:__________________________________ 

 


	09-23-15_SVMPO Meeting Agenda
	07-22-15_SVMPO Minutes
	BST DCR 2015 0722 BST SVMPO Board Presentation
	Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization�Location / Design Concept Report�Buffalo Soldier Trail Extension to Moson Road
	Presentation Agenda
	Project Purpose and Need
	Design Goals
	Study Objectives
	Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization�Location / Design Concept Report�Buffalo Soldier Trail Extension to Moson Road
	Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization�Location / Design Concept Report�Buffalo Soldier Trail Extension to Moson Road
	Original Alternative Corridors
	Alternatives Evaluated
	Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization�Location / Design Concept Report�Buffalo Soldier Trail Extension to Moson Road
	Public Support Summary
	Future Traffic w/out Project
	Future Traffic Comparison
	Final Scoring
	Public Meeting No. 2 – April 14, 2015
	Candidate Preferred Alternative
	Candidate “Preferred Alterative”
	Costs
	Slide Number 19
	BST – Section 18W
	BST – Section 18 E
	BST – Section 17W
	BST – Section 17E
	BST – Section 16W
	BST – Section 16E
	BST – Section 22W
	BST – Section 22E
	BST – Section 23W
	Next Steps

	Molinari Packet_
	SVMPO_BYLAWS_12-18-13  Amended Nov 2015
	Jurisdiction
	City Engineer

	MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
	City of Sierra Vista, Arizona
	and
	Sierra Vista Metropolitan Planning Organization


